
 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

DISTRICTWIDE EXCLUSIVE DIGITAL IMAGING DEVICES MASTER PURCHASING AGREEMENT 

 
LOS ANGELES COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

Contracts Office 
770 Wilshire Boulevard, 6th Floor 

Los Angeles, California 90017 
 
RFP Number:  15-09 
Addendum Number:  6 
Date:  March 9, 2016 
 
NOTICE TO PROPOSERS:  THIS ADDENDUM SHALL BECOME PART OF THE RFP, AND PROPOSERS SHALL ACKNOWLEDGE, IN 
WRITING, RECEIPT AND INCORPORATION OF ALL ADDENDA AND CLARIFICATIONS IN THEIR RESPONSE.  FAILURE OF THE 
PROPOSER TO RECEIVE ADDENDA SHALL NOT RELIEVE THE PROPOSER FROM ANY OBLIGATION UNDER ITS PROPOSAL  AS 
SUBMITTED.  THE PROPOSER SHALL IDENTIFY AND LIST IN ITS PROPOSAL ALL ADDENDA RECEIVED AND INCLUDED IN ITS 
PROPOSAL; FAILURE TO DO SO MAY BE ASSERTED BY THE DISTRICT AS A BASIS FOR DETERMINING THE PROPOSAL NON-
RESPONSIVE. 

 
This Addendum is issued to: 
 
1.  Extend the Proposals Due Date to April 5, 2016, 2:00 p.m., PDT 
 
2.  Provide answers to questions submitted by potential proposers. 
  



Number Question Answer 

GENERAL QUESTIONS FOR LACCD’S RFP NO. 15-09 

1 
Are the references for each category or three total 

for all categories? 

LACCD wants to know that each proposer has implemented 

its proposed solution in each category at least three times 

effectively. Therefore, while the three references are for each 

category, there may, and probably will, be much overlap. It is 

theoretically possible for a proposer to need to provide only 

three total references or as many as twelve. For example, 

category one may have references A, B, & C. Category two 

may have A, B & D. Category three may have A, C & D and 

category four may have B, C, & D. Therefore, a proposer 

would need to provide four total references. However, let's say 

that the proposer never implemented printer service for A, B, 

C or D, they can provide references E, F, & G for that 

category which would bring the total up to 7. 

2 

Please clarify your expectation of the term of this 

agreement as well as the financing terms.  Page 

11 Section M in the RFP references the "contract" 

will continue for 5 years.  Page 1 of 9 

in Attachment C (Standard Master Agreement)  for 

the Term it references 3 years from the date of the 

approval of the Master Agreement.  Attachment D 

Standard Equipment Lease Agreement refers  to 

the term as "set forth above"   which is not stated 

in Attachment D. 

The service portion of the agreement and lease portions of the 

RFP may run as long as five years. The master purchasing 

agreement will only last three years. 

3 
What is LACCD’s implementation time frame for 

the vendor? 

There are a large number of devices which need to be 

replaced within six months of the purchasing agreement. It is 

the intention of the District that all future purchases for a 

period of three years  be through one vendor for each 

category need. 



4 

Under the Staffing and Organization section, it 

asks for all resumes for key personnel involved, 

but under the Appendix section it asks to list the 

resumes of the key personnel. Which section do 

you want us to list all of the key personnel along 

with their resumes? 

Either will work as will both. 

5 

What is the minimum amount of users that a print 

management solution will have to support (50, 100, 

500, 1000)? 

50 

6 

What is the minimum amount of units that will be 

connected per print management solution server 

(50, 100, 500)? 

Unknown 

7 
What areas of fraud is the district concerned 

about?  

Besides documents specifically protected by HIPAA and 

FERPA, almost all documents which are used by the District 

are public records and are available to the public upon 

request. The District is always concerned about fraud in 

general (financial as well as identity fraud especially). If your 

firm can provide best-in -class fraud protection which will 

make substantial improvements in District operations, please 

include such in your proposal.  

8 Is it possible for this bid to be piggyback able?  
Yes. This language will be more fully explain in a subsequent 

addendum. 

9 
Will the end users be responsible for installing 

toner and MA kits in the devices? 
Yes 

10 
Is there a Print Policy in place today? If yes, can 

we get a copy of the print policy? 

There are a number of current situations at the different 

colleges. The District will not provide any more detail than 

that. It is a requirement of the RFP to include a backend which 

controls policy. 



11 

In reference to the Post implementation 

Expectation #9. Is this a rolling 90 day period or a 

preset period, i.e. Q1, Q2, etc.? That's all I could 

come up with. On page 21 bullet point 9 it states 

that any device that does not have 95% uptime 

over a 90 day period will have all the prints 

credited to the school for that period. I'm not sure if 

I asked this correctly or not. We need to clarify if 

that is a rolling 90 days or not. i.e.: if we have one 

bad month that brings the average down a device 

could get free prints for up to 5 months. 

Any situation in which one month of bad service can so 

completely ruin the average would be cause for breach of 

contract proceedings and will likely result in termination of the 

agreement for cause. 5 months of free service would be the 

least damaging scenario. It is the expectation of the District 

that the awarded vendor(s) have a proven track record of 

success in properly servicing the purchased equipment and 

back it up with a guarantee that they are confident will never 

be needed. 

12 
Are they asking that all proposed units have color 

printing capability? 

Yes. However, please provide pricing for Black and white only 

units if you have those available 

13 
Is there a price sheet for the other three 

categories:  Production print, MPS, Pay for Print? 

No. Provide a summary of your offerings with options and 

pricing separately. 

14 
Is there a place where we should input the cost per 

copy charge for black and color prints? 

Please provide your pricing and terms in your response 

wherever you find appropriate. 

15 What does post insertion refer to? 

To insert preprinted pages into a job before the finishing 

options are applied (e.g., hole punch, booklet, etc.) where 

applicable. 

16 

Please clarify the following terminology as it relates 

to your RFP: When you are referring to Print to 

Pay do you mean just the walk up student print 

devices or are you also including centralized 

production print environment in that terminology?   

Pay to print are devices to be used by the public and not 

employees of the district in which the college is charging up 

front for use of the device. This refers to walk up copiers and 

not production print.  

17 
The District refers to an outside consultant.  Can 

you please identify who this consultant is?  

At the present moment, LACCD is not using an outside 

consultant, however it reserves the right to do so at any time 

at its discretion. 



18 

How does the district manage the printer 

population today?  Do you use any network 

monitoring devices or print management?  

There is a range of current management techniques being 

used from nothing to campus wide managed print services at 

some colleges. 

19 

What selection group does the managed print 

services belong in. The RFP has it as a separate 

category #4 

It is its own group (#4) that may be grouped with the highest 

scoring proposer from any of the other three categories. 

20 

Provide software updates through the term of the 

contract at no additional cost to the District. (Note: 

Award will only be given to vendors who offer 

solutions that do not require print drivers or a DCA 

to be loaded on individual computer within the 

District’s network(s). 

 

Q: Does the District have any locally connected 

(e.g., USB) printers? 

None of the office copiers are connected via USB. There are 

many desktop printers of unknown numbers.  

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE 

21  

Will the "Dedicated" Customer Service 

representative need to be located on a Campus or 

can the rep be remote? 

Remote is fine as long as the person is available to make on-

campus visits to troubleshoot issues. 

22  

What are your top 10 tasks you expect to include 

in the scope of service for the “Customer Service 

Manager” as it relates to the Managed Print 

Program you envision? 

Please make sure to include your customer service offerings 

for a determination to be made as to your proposal's score. 

23  

Do you currently have a LACCD employee 

performing the Customer Service Manager tasks? 

If not is the role to be entirely new to the LACCD 

community or is the work getting done by multiple 

resources and this is to consolidate the tasks to 

one role and vendor? 

No. The RFP speaks for itself. 



24  

Page 20, Service Requirements: Post- 

implementation expectations item # 2:  You have 

requested a dedicated customer service 

representative.  What do you envision the 

responsibilities of this individual to be?  For 

instance, is this a dedicated on site resource 

responsible for addressing customer needs on site 

such as equipment trouble shooting, meters etc.  

Or is this a sales individual responsible for 

assisting your account remotely?   

The customer service representative is to handle all the 

general needs of the District as a centralized resource. It is 

the expectation that the District would report a problem, 

whether it is a wrong meter read or a device which is critical 

for service and the representative would arrange solutions at 

your company and get back to the District 

25  

Will it be expected that the “Customer Service 

Manager” travel to and spend time at each of 

LACC locations listed in this RFP or will the 

position be a remote support or based at a single 

campus location? 

The customer service manager can be at any location you 

propose and you will need to explain how it will benefit the 

District. At a minimum, the Customer Service Manager must 

be able to visit a campus in person when needed. 

CATEGORY ONE: OFFICE COPIERS 

26  
Can we get a list of devices (Make & Model) with 

Monthly Volumes and location information? 

Information not available 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27  

Can you share a list of current in place equipment 

by manufacturer, model, current volumes (by black 

& white & color), by site location, and end lease 

dates? 

28  
What is the average service call rate per device 

per month? 

29  
Can the district provide historical data on 

equipment moves?   



30  

Can the district provide any historical data on 

number and types of printers, pages per month, 

cases of paper ordered, # of service calls to help 

desk etc.  

Information not available 31  What is LACCD current inventory at each college? 

32  
Does LACCD have a breakdown of devices that 

they want for each College from the vendor? 

33  
How many moves did the School District make 

over the last 3 years? 

34  
Will there be an opportunity to schedule a on-site 

visit to access the equipment in question? 
No 

35  Are all of the Campuses on the same WAN?  No 

36  

Does LACCD want the office copiers to print at 

least 12x18 or was this requirement for production 

only? 

11x17 minimum for office devices and 12x18 for production 

print. 

37  
Will LACCD provide server hardware for the 

solution requirement? 
Yes 

38  Is Attachment A only pertaining to office copiers? Yes 

39  
Does the business class MFPs need/require built 

in OCR or middle ware based OCR? 
Built in is preferred. 

  



40 

Copy, Scan, Print, Fax capabilities must interface 

with the District’s current operating system (both 

Mac and Windows) without the requirement of 

ancillary programs, host computers or patches to 

make functional. 

 

Q: What Windows and Mac OS operating systems 

does the District currently use? (e.g., Windows 7 

(64-bit), OS X 10.11 “El Capitan”) 

Current versions: Windows 8, 10,  OS X  10.11  

41 

In question 1. it states "must interface with 

the  District's current Operating system (both Mac 

and Windows) - what versions of Mac and 

Windows are you running? 

42 

In question 5 Provide secure print queue - Do you 

want this to be a user choice or enforced and 

required? 

User Choice is required. The option to make it mandatory is 

welcome. 

43 

In question 6 you as to "provide administrative 

access to customize and generate a wide range of 

usage reports on demand" Can you provide 

examples of what you are looking to 

accomplish?  Reports on the device, users of the 

device, applications printing to the device, etc. 

In your RFP response, please explain what kind of reports 

your proposed solution can provide. 

44 

In question 8 you ask to provide for "user codes to 

be pushed"  would all devices have the same user 

codes?   How many user codes would there be? 

The purpose is to avoid having to individually program each 

individual device separately and instead be able to program 

once and copy on any and all subsequent devices. 

  



45 

All hardware must have capability to integrate with 

software that suggests cost effective printing 

options to users in real time, and re- direct large 

print jobs to lower cost devices or devices not 

being used at time of job. Does this mean the 

software must be included or is it an option?  

Software must be included. 

46 

 Confirm that the proposed devices meet or 

exceed the mandatory minimum requirements: 

• Full Integration with Document Management 

Solutions from the following providers: 

o Alfresco, EMC, Ever Team, Fabasoft, HP, 

Hyland Software, IBM, Laserfiche, M-Files, 

Microsoft, Newgen Software Technologies, 

Objective, OpenText, Oracle, Perceptive Software, 

Saperion, Siav, Software Innovation, SpringCM, 

SunGard, Systemware, Unisys, Xerox 

• Fax Server integration 

• Out of the box integration with SAP Materials 

Management and Human Resources modules and 

Oracle PeopleSoft. 

 

Q: Please describe what level of integration is 

required for these document management, fax 

server, and line of business applications. (e.g., 

scan to watch folder, ODBC-based, API-based 

integration, etc.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please specify which software platforms by those 

manufacturers your solution can interface with if any and 

describe the ways it fully integrates. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

47 

Could you expand upon what you mean by full 

integration...  Does this include scanning to or 

printing from or both? To include all named 

manufacturers?  Do any of your solutions use 

proprietary protocols?  If so could you please 

expand? 



48 

Pg 23: you request scanning to a list of Document 

Management solutions - can you provide the 

versions required as well?  Some are company 

names such as IBM and Xerox - can you verify 

which software platform for each listed? 

Please specify which software platforms by those 

manufacturers your solution can interface with if any and 

describe the ways it fully integrates 

 

49 

Please describe the level of integration you are 

looking to achieve with SAP Materials Mgmt. and 

HR models as well as with Oracle's PeopleSoft - 

can you also provide the software versions you are 

running for these projects and if any upgrades in 

the future are being considered.  

SAP ECC 6.0, PeopleSoft (PeopleTools 8.53.13).   

50 

Does LACCD use a specific fax server? If so, 

please state the name, version, and current 

maintenance on the fax server. LACCD is currently looking to procure a fax server solution to 

work with the proposed new copier equipment. Please specify 

which fax server applications your proposed solution can work 

with. 

51 What Fax Server do you currently use?. 

52 
Fax Server Integration - which Fax Server to you 

wish to use or are you considering? 

QUESTIONS REGARDING PRODUCTION DEVICES: 

53 What are your current Production Devices? Not available 

54 
What are your current file types? PDFs? Adobe 

Creative Suite? 
Adobe and Microsoft files 

55 How are files submitted? 
It is the desire of the District to implement an online order 

submission workflow. 

56 Are you currently using Web Submission? No 

  



57 

Do you print TABS, Heavyweight Coated NCR 

Media? If so, is the media ran in color or black and 

white only or both? 

Yes. Both. 

58 Will you be printing booklets? Yes 

59 What are the Mandatory Paper sheets sizes? At least 12x18 

60 Do you require GBC punching? 

Please provide all options for consideration. Proposals will be 

scored on the quality and breadth of the solutions offered. 
61 Do you require square folding and face trimming? 

62 Is there a mandatory paper supply minimum? 

COLOR REPRODUCTION 

63  
Will this RFP involve district print shop at the 

Administrative Offices? 
Yes as well as the reprographics departments at the colleges 

64  Do you require Automatic Document Feeder? Yes 

65  Do you have the need to print with white toner? Not anticipated at this time 

66  Do you have the need to print with clear toner? Not anticipated at this time 

67  
What paper sizes do you need to print on? 11 x17, 

12 x 18, 13 x 19? 
At least 12x18 

68  
Do you require the need to print on Oversize 

Media? 13 x 27”, 13 x 49” 
That would be preferable. 

69  

Will vendors have access to complete a onsite  

sight surveys at each production print area before 

submitting the final proposal ? 

No 

70  

Do you currently use Variable Data Printing 

software? If yes, what is the software currently 

utilized? 

No. Please provide options. 



71  What is the anticipated monthly volume in color? 
Information not available. Please provide all options for print 

shops of all sizes and volumes. 
72  

What is the anticipated monthly volume in 

Black/White? 

73  
What are the minimum pages per minute required 

for RFP? 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Information not available. Please provide all options for print 

shops of all sizes and volumes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

74  

What paper weights do you need to print on ? 256 

gsm, 300 gsm, greater than 300 gsm? What are 

your monthly volumes of the various paper 

weights? 

75  
What are the paper weight equipments for duplex 

printing? 

76  
What type of stocks do you print on? coated, 

synthetics, textures?  

77  
Do you have the need to print on NCR paper? If 

yes, what is the monthly volume? 

78  

Do you require the need to print on envelopes? If 

yes, what envelope sizes, what is the monthly 

volume? 

79  

What color management tools do you require?  

Spectrophometer, Spot On, Color Profiler Suite, 

etc.? 

80  Do you require impose or compose? 

81  

What applications will production print be printing? 

Business cards, post cards, menus, posters, flyers, 

etc.? 



82  
What is the current available space to place a 

production solution? (WxDxH) ? 

 

 

 

 

Information not available. Please provide all options for print 

shops of all sizes and volumes. 

 

83  What are your print Controller requirements? 

84  
What are the sizes of the print files that you will 

print on color reproduction device? 

85  
What programs/applications will be used to print to 

the color reproduction device? 

HIGH SPEED BLACK/WHITE REPRODUCTION 

86 
Will this RFP involve district print shop at the 

Administrative Offices? 
Yes as well as the reprographics departments at the colleges. 

87 
What is the anticipated monthly volume in 

Black/White? Information not available. Please provide all options for print 

shops of all sizes and volumes. 
88 

What are the minimum pages per minute required 

for RFP? 

WIDE FORMAT 

89 
Regarding the Wide Format category, do we need 

MFP or print only? 
Both would be preferable 

90 
What type of wide format is LACCD looking for: 

MFP of printer? Laser or Inkjet? 

LACCD is looking for best available options for drafting and 

poster production. 

91 
Does the district require both Black/White and 

Color capability for the Wide Format Printing? 
Yes. Provide best available options for the District. 

  



92  
On wide format devices, what is the minimum/ 

maximum paper sizes? 
Must be able to print 30x42. Larger size options are welcome. 

93  
What paper sizes do you need to print on? 24”, 

36”, 48” 63”  

94  What is your monthly print volume? 

Information not available. Please provide all options for print 

shops of all sizes and volumes. 
95  

What types of wide format signage do you 

use/need? 

96  What substrates will the district be printing on? 

97  
What are the District’s main applications for wide 

format printing? 
Posters and blueprints 

98  
Will the district be printing on media for outdoor 

signage?  
Possibly 

99  Is environmental sustainability important to you? Yes 

100  

Do you print on any specialty substrates, such as 

film, tarpaulin fabric, PVC or transparent 

materials? If not, would you like to? 

Possibly 

WORKFLOW 

101 What are your workflow requirements? 

It is the intent of the District to have its employees be able to 

submit large print jobs via an internet browser in the following 

way: User sees the actual job he/she is submitting with page 

layout, the graphics of the submission tool are such that an 

accurate representation of the final product is clearly visible 

on the screen before submittal and the user interface is 

intuitive and simple. 

  



102 
Do you currently use a Make Ready Software? If 

yes, what is the software currently being used? 
No 

103 Do you require impose or compose? Not required. Please provide options if available. 

104 

Do you currently have a print “Q” management 

tool? If yes, what is the software currently being 

used? 

At some colleges. Please provide your own solution and 

explain how it would work for the District. 

105 Do you need a print “Q” management software? Possibly 

ONLINE TICKETING AND ORDER SUBMISSION 

106  

Do you currently use Online ticketing and order 

submission tool? If yes, what is the software 

currently being used? 

No 

107  
Are you looking for a Web to Print submission 

tool? 
Yes 

108  
If yes, does the district want to host the software or 

are you looking for a 3rd party company to host? 
Either is acceptable. Please provide best value proposal. 

109  
What are main applications for the Online ticketing 

and order submission?  
For production of large jobs 

110  

Will the Online ticketing solution and order 

submission involve district print shop at the 

Administrative Offices? 

Yes, as well as at the college reprographic departments 

111  
Do you require LDAP integration for the Web to 

Print Solution? 
Yes 

112  
Do you have the need to submit business cards 

request? 
Yes 

113  Do you have the need for a Online Catalog option? Yes 



114  
Do you have the need for a credit card module to 

bill back facility, staff, or students? 
Not a requirement but would be nice 

115  

Will the Online ticketing and order submission 

involve the facility, staff only? Or will it be for the 

students as well. 

At a minimum, of faculty and staff;  may include students if the 

billing option is easy and inexpensive 

QUESTIONS REGARDING PAY TO PRINT SOLUTIONS 

116  

Page 24. Category Three: PAY TO PRINT 

SOLUTIONS - Pay for use: What system are you 

currently using?  

There are a myriad of current situations at the 9 colleges. The 

District is seeking a best in class solution to be proposed. 

117  How do you handle student print today?   

118  

Do you provide means for students to print with 

university resources?  Do you charge?  Where are 

those facilities? 

119  

Do you have a OneCard system in place today that 

Students can use to make purchases on 

campus?  Who is the provider of that solution? 

120  
What type of keycard technology does LACCD 

currently use? 
RFID Cards 

121  
What versions of operating systems does LACCD 

currently use? 
Current versions: Windows 8, 10,  OS X  10.11  

122  
Is the pay for print copier (minimum 75ppm) black 

and white or color? 
Black and white. Please specify the color speed if different. 

123  
Under pay to print solutions, is it 360,000 B&W/ 

48,000/ Color per machine? 
This is per machine per year 

124  
Is pay to print (libraries & bookstores) available to 

the public? 
Yes 



125  
Under pay to print, does the terminal accept cash/ 

credit card to put on RFID card? 
Yes 

126  
If pay to print (libraries & bookstores) is public, 

does it issue RFID cards to the public? 
Yes 

 

 


